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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND QRIGINAL [TF KNOWN) PHYS!CAL APPEARANCE

The Passmore House in Hot Springs is one of the most picturesgue Second
Enpire structures found in Arkansas. Built in 1873 by Dr. Pauldin Passmore,
the one—and-one-half-storey, clapboard home stands amidst a thickly wooded
estate at the base of North Mountain in Hot Spxings. The building features
a sevan-bay facade (riorth elewvation) set beneath a crested, multi-dormered
mansard roof. Outstanding exterior features ayxe the highly decorative
temple dormers, dropping below the cornice lipe and embellished with an
emhossed design on the tympanum, and a protruding two-storey, central
pavilion which is treated as a2 towsr.

The chimneys found on the home are corbelled at the caps, and the cornice
along the facade is moduled and bracketed. The apertures are rectilinsar
and present an extremely vertical appzarancs. The upper sash of the
double-hung windows is as a rule bordsred with small panes of stained
glass. On both the first and second floor levels exterior doorways in

the protruding central pavilion are double or French doors. A small quatre-
foil lattice balcony fronts the door on the uvpper fleoxr. In keeping with
"Ganeral Grant" Style architecture, porches are attached to much of the
opan wall surface on the first floor. The rear and side elevations of the
home are distinguished by numerous bavs and insets, generally unadorned
and completaly contemporary with the original construction of th2 houss.

The stairway, as is usual with Second Empire structures, is the focal point
of interior decoration. It is constructed of turned hardwood and follows

a dog-leqg pattern.. - The Passmore House, however, contains an eccentrie
interior feature which reflects the original turn of mind of its architect-
builder and initial ownex, Mr. Passmoya. Flanking the entrance hall is a
paneled dining room encased benesath a domed ceiling. The stained glass
which once formed a skylight in the middle of this large dore has since

been replaced in an wnauthentic manner, and the simple, painted, mural
covering the interior surface of the dome is falling away, but.the continued
presence of the dome makes the room one of the most unusual in Arkansas.

Except for rare instances of chipped paint and tattered wallpaper the interior
of the house remains in an excellent, original condition. Some unusual
antigqua technological features such as a coal-base burner, and bathroom
fixtures also remain.

The house, the property, and a single ancillary structure located behind
the house have suffered no major alterations. Furtherxmore, the setting
iz sufficiently obscured by forest and mountain from its more modern
surroundings that the rind can with good conscience wander back and be .
enveloped by the vear of 1873.
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Medicine and Hot Springs have long been joined in economic, if not spiritual, o
matrimony by the presence of thermal springs located on the eastern slope

of Hot Springs Mountain. These waters, known as the "healing vapors,” were

greatly exploited for their ability to give relief to various arthritic -
and rheumatic conditions in the era bafore the "wonder™ and "miracle" drugs.
While some realized the potential which bubbled in the steamy springs as _i
early as the 1840's, it was not until after the Civil War that the serious ;;
business of building Hot Springs into the nation's premier health resort o
was undertaken,

On ity as a Union surgeon for the Rrmv Department of the West, Drx. Pauldin
Passmore first passed through Hot Springs in the veax 1883, iz was Sleasad s
with Arkansas, and after the war settled in Little Rock, entering business s
~ as a druggist. Soon, however, the lure of Hot Springs drew him southward
and he began what was to bscome a most successful apothecary trade in
Hot Springs. He was present during the boom vears, 1870-1890, when Hot
Springs was transformed from a frontier settlement, nated bv nountaineers
and delta planters for its soothing bathing water, into a hsalth metropolis
connected to the nation by railway and by reputation. In the summer the
city resembled a Victorian carnival. Dr. Passmore profitted from this
phenomenal expansion, leaving behind three well-patronized drug stores at
his death in 1896,

The construction of the Passmore residenca took place in 1873. It was a
sumptuous structure, befitting a man who had made good by being in the
right profession at the right place and at the right time. Dr. Passmore
designed the building and supervised construction. He displayed great
imagination in fitting the Second Empire Style to his own personal prefer-
ences and needs.

The building was set on a forested knoll saveral hundred feet from the
nearest thoroughfare, Park Avenue. The Park Avenue district was at the
time the most exclusive new residential section of the city, and it was
the safest, being well-removed from the older section of town,which was
clustered in a narrow, fire-prone, valley alcng Hot Springs Creek.

Today, the one—and-one-half-storey claphoard house lookxs much as it did
in 1873. Ornate iron cresting crcwns the mansard roof, which in true
Second Empire fashion is curvad. Unusnal temple dormers decorate the
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rcof and extend down below the cornice line., A two-storey central pavilion,
capped with a separate, crested mansard, protrudes from the facade (north
elevation) of the house, foreshadowing the towered structures of the later
Victorian meriod. ALl doorways and windows are expressed as severely vertical
forms. The rear sections of the structure are composed of numerous unadorned
bays and insets.
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The interior is made unique by one eccentric element. The ceiling of the
dining room is formed into a large dome brokaa in the middle by a stained-
glass skylight. BAs was common in the more expensive Hot Springs homes

of the period, hardwood was used for every concelvable typz of moulding,
The stairway is also an elaborate hardwood composition. A coal-base burner
has been retained by the present cwner, though it is ne longer in usa.
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2 exterior and intexior of the hoxe are in good condition. Treas and
nhills shield the home ZIfrom unwelcomsa, out-of-charagcter wvisual intrusions.

Miss Wilhelminalea, the granddaughter of Dr. Passmore, is the present
owner of the home, Plans for the disposal of the house after her death
are uncertain.
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The Passmore House can stand, as much an example of economic history as
.it can of architectural history. It was built duwring the boom period of
the City of Hot Springs and it represents the tastes and living standard
of one who was able to profit from the ranid expansion.
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